
 

TUPELO REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING 

NOVEMBER 15, 2022 AT 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS | CITY HALL 

AGENDA 

INVOCATION:                                COUNCIL MEMBER ROSIE JONES 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:       COUNCIL MEMBER CHAD MIMS 

CALL TO ORDER:                         COUNCIL PRESIDENT LYNN BRYAN 

CONFIRMATION OR AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA AND AGENDA ORDER 

PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS AND REPORTS AGENDA 

PROCLAMATIONS 

RECOGNITION GIRL/BOY SCOUTS 

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 

PUBLIC RECOGNITION 

MAYOR'S REMARKS 

(CLOSE REGULAR MEETING OPEN PUBLIC AGENDA) 

PUBLIC AGENDA 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR LOT MOWING TN 

APPEALS 

CITIZEN HEARING 

(CLOSE PUBLIC AGENDA AND OPEN REGULAR SESSION) 

- 1 -



ACTION AGENDA 

2. IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CH. 7 OF THE TUPELO CODE 

OF ORDINANCES PERTAINING TO BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

TN 

3. IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CH. 10 OF THE TUPELO CODE 

OF ORDINANCES PERTAINING TO FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION TN 

ROUTINE AGENDA 

4. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 1, 2022 REGULAR 

COUNCIL MEETING 

5. IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY KH 

6. IN THE MATTER OF ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ITEMS KH 

7. IN THE MATTER OF BUDGET AMENDMENT #1 FOR FY 2023  KH 

8. IN THE MATTER OF CLOSING MTP PHASE VI BANK ACCOUNT KH 

9. IN THE MATTER OF CLOSING 2011 G.O. BOND FUND BANK ACCT KH 

10. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF ENGINEER RECOMMENDATION FOR ARC 

COOPER TIRE PROJECT AC 

11. IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE PROPERTIES FOR LOT MOWING TN 

12. IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING DEVELOPMENT CODE BY 

AMENDING CERTAIN SUB-SECTIONS OF SECTION 5.1 BELLEDEER 

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION OVERLAY DISTRICT (TA22-03.25) (TABLED 

AT SEPTEMBER 20, 2022 MEETING)TN 

13. IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE RESOLUTION ADOPTING 

REDISTRICTING CRITERIA FOR THE REDSTRICTING OF THE CITY OF TUPELO’S 

WARD LINES FOLLOWING THE 2020 CENSUS TN 

14. IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF TUPELO AND THREE RIVERS PLANNING & 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT TN 

15. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF TPRD ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES FOR 

AUGUST 2022 AF 

16. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR THE SKATE PARK AF 

17. IN THE MATTER OF AMENDMENT TO DAYBRITE/SIGNIFY/THRELKELD 

BUILDING LEASE TO PROVIDE OPTION TO PURCHASE FACILITY IF APPROVED 

BY MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (MDA) BL 

- 2 -



(CLOSE REGULAR SESSION) 

STUDY AGENDA 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

ADJOURNMENT 

- 3 -



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE November 15, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR LOT MOWING TN 
  

 

Request:  

Public Hearing for properties on final lot mowing list. Preliminary list is attached. Final list will 

be provided prior to the meeting.  

- 4 -

Item # 1.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 11/15/2022 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

1.  43472 106C1302000 2304 MARION 
ST 

BUMPHIS TERRY 
& JEWEL 

2300 MARION TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

2.   43473 106C1316500 1012 
BICKERSTAFF ST 

TUTOR LEE LLC 2000 N GLOSTER ST TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

3.   43474 106C1316400 1010 
BICKERSTAFF ST 

TUCKER LEUNDRA 
& DAMITA 

106 CR RD 1046 TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

4.   43475 106G1307700 3067 
MONTEREY DR 

JACKSON PATRICK 
F 

3067 MONTEREY DR TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

5.   43482 105H1509800 3319 ROBERT 
KENNEDY DR 

MOORE TONY A 
SR & BERNICE 

109  BELWOOD COVE BELDEN, MS 38826 RS 

6.   43498 101D0123400 1301 
LAWNDALE DR 

HOPE 
TRANSPORTATION 
LLC 

P O BOX 3295 TUPELO, MS 38803 SB 

7.   43509 113N0702100 1302 ERIN ST FERNANDEZ 
EARNESTO 
MANUEL 

1302 ERIN STREET TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

8.   43517 106C1314500 1013 TERRY RD GRAB THE MAP 
LLC 

1013 W MAIN ST TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

9.   43519 106D1300101 1439 MITCHELL 
RD UNIT A 

PERKINS MIKE P O BOX 3231 TUPELO, MS 38803 RS 

10.   43534 106D1307600 909 PARISH DR TALLEY DANA L 909 PARISH DR TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

11.          

12.          

 

- 5 -

Item # 1.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE Nov. 15, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CH. 7 OF THE 

TUPELO CODE OF ORDINANCES PERTAINING TO BUILDINGS AND 

BUILDING REGULATIONS TN 
  

 

Request:  

Review and approve an ordinance amending Ch.7 of the Tupelo Code of Ordinances. Proposed 

amendments were recommended by the Tupelo License Commission on Oct. 6, 2022. 

 

 

- 6 -

Item # 2.



ORDINANCE AMENDING SUB-SECTIONS OF CITY OF TUPELO 
CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 7 BUILDINGS AND BUILDING 

REGULATIONS, SPECIFICALLY, DESIGNATION OF THE BUILDING 
OFFICIAL AND COMPOSITION AND PROCEDURES OF LICENSE 

COMMISSION  
 

 WHEREAS, since the Building Official role was first established in 1991, the 

Development Services Department of the City of Tupelo has evolved from the concept of a city 

planner and building inspector into the broader role of comprehensive development services for 

the city; and 

 WHEREAS, since the city’s 2018 adoption of the full library of building codes 

established by the International Code Council (ICC), appeals from decisions of the building 

division have increased in frequency and complexity, warranting matching procedures to actual 

experience and adding a broader range of expertise to the City of Tupelo License Commission; 

and  
 
 WHEREAS, these amendments are in the best interests of the health, safety and welfare 

of the municipality and its citizens.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, as follows: 

 SECTION 1. The prefatory statements are hereby incorporated herein, and the City 

Council finds these amendments to be in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 

municipality and its citizens. 

 SECTION 2.  Chapter 7, Article I, Section 7-1 is amended by substitution to read: 

Sec. 7-1. - Designation of code enforcement official.  

 The Director of Development Services, or his/her designee, is hereby designated as the 

City of Tupelo Building Official and shall serve as the building official with responsibilities as 

- 7 -

Item # 2.



 2 

contained in the building, plumbing, gas, mechanical and swimming pool codes, and as the 

housing official as contained in the housing code. 

 SECTION 3.  Chapter 7, Article I, Section 7-1 is amended by substitution to read: 

Sec. 7-147. - License Commission.  

(a) The Mayor, with confirmation of the City Council, shall appoint a License 

Commission with responsibility and authority as set forth herein.  

(b) The License Commission shall consist of seven (7) members: (1) Licensed Architect, 

(1) Licensed Commercial Building Contractor, (1) Licensed Residential Building 

Contractor, (1) Licensed Electrical Engineer or Contractor, (1) Licensed Mechanical 

Engineer or Contractor, (1) Licensed Plumbing Contractor, and (1) Fire Safety 

Representative.  

(c) All members shall serve for a term of four (4) years or until their successors are duly 

appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council, respectively.  

(d) The Mayor may remove any member of the License Commission for inefficiency, 

neglect of duty, or malfeasance in office.  

(e) The License Commission shall elect officers, establish bylaws and other necessary 

procedures of operation. Minutes and records of all actions shall be kept and presented to 

the City Council at their next regular meeting following each License Commission 

meeting. Any action of the License Commission may be reversed or modified by vote of 

the City Council.  

(f) The Mayor, Director of Development Services, or Chairperson of the Commission 

may call a License Commission meeting on their own motion and the Director of 

- 8 -

Item # 2.



 3 

Development Services shall call a meeting on the application of three Commissioners or 

within ten (10) days of receipt of an appeal to the License Commission.  

(g) The License Commission shall serve the purpose of the Construction Board of 

Adjustments and Appeals and the Housing Board of Adjustments and Appeals as 

specified by the construction codes.  

(h) The License Commission members shall reside within the corporate boundaries of the 

city, or hold a privilege license to conduct business within the City of Tupelo. 

 (i) Appeal from the decision of the License Commission shall be by petition for appeal to 

 the City Council. Any such petition shall be filed with the Department of Development 

 Services no later than five (5) days after the date the decision is filed with the Department 

 of Development Services and notice is received by the appellant, applicant or petitioner. 

 Notice of the council meeting date shall be sent to the applicant, appellant, and all 

 opposition known to the License Commission. The City Council shall act on the appeal 

 either by confirmation, modification of conditions or rejection by majority vote. Appeal 

 from the decision of the City Council shall be by petition for appeal to the Lee County 

 Circuit Clerk after approval by the Mayor, an override vote of the Mayor's veto or ten           

 (10) working days after the decision of the City Council without action by the Mayor. 

 SECTION 4. This amendatory ordinance has been articulated to be consistent with the 

constitution and laws of the State of Mississippi.  The City Council finds that this amendatory 

ordinance does not violate any provision of the United States Constitution and laws.  In the event 

that any court of competent jurisdiction finds that any provision of this amendatory ordinance is 

unconstitutional or invalid, the remainder shall stay in full force and effect.  

- 9 -

Item # 2.



 4 

 SECTION 5. All ordinances, resolutions or orders in conflict herewith are repealed, 

effective thirty (30) days after passage of this amendment. 

 SECTION 6. This ordinance shall become effective on the thirtieth (30th) day following 

the adoption hereof.  The City Council Clerk shall cause the ordinance to be published one (1) 

time in a local newspaper with a general circulation.  

 The foregoing ordinance was proposed in a motion by Council Member                  ,         

seconded by Council Member                    , and after discussion, no council member having 

called for a reading, was brought to a vote as follows: 

 

  Council Member Chad Mims    _____ 
  Council Member Lynn Bryan    _____ 
  Council Member Travis Beard    _____   
  Council Member Nettie Davis   _____ 
  Council Member Buddy Palmer   _____ 
  Council Member Janet Gaston   _____ 
  Council Member Rosie Jones    _____ 
   

 
   
 Whereupon, the motion having received a majority of affirmative votes, the President of 

the Council declared that the Ordinance had been passed and adopted on this the _____ day of 

November, 2022.  

 

       CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 
 
      BY: ____________________________________ 
             LYNN BRYAN, President 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 

- 10 -

Item # 2.



 5 

 
_____________________________________ 
MISSY SHELTON, Clerk of the Council 
 
 
      
      APPROVED: 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      TODD JORDAN, Mayor 
 
       
      DATE   
 
 

- 11 -

Item # 2.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE Nov. 15, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CH. 10 OF THE 

TUPELO CODE OF ORDINANCES PERTAINING TO FIRE PREVENTION 

AND PROTECTION TN 
  

 

Request:  

Review and approve an ordinance amending Ch.10 of the Tupelo Code of Ordinances. Proposed 

amendments were recommended by the Tupelo License Commission on Oct. 6, 2022. 

 

 

- 12 -

Item # 3.



ORDINANCE AMENDING SUB-SECTIONS OF CITY OF TUPELO 
CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 10 FIRE PREVENTION AND 

PROTECTION, SPECIFICALLY, DEFINING THE ROLE AS RELATES 
TO THE BUILDING CODE AND PROVIDING FOR AN APPEALS 
PROCESS FROM DECISIONS OF THE CITY OF TUPELO FIRE 

MARSHAL  
 

 WHEREAS, the role of the “chief of the bureau of fire prevention” was established in 

1974; and 

 WHEREAS, the structure the fire department has evolved to meet the growth of the city 

to now include a fire chief and fire marshal, among other positions; and 

 WHEREAS, some confusion exists as to the role of these two positions as relates to 

responsibilities under the building codes, particularly the fire code, administered by the fire 

department; and 

 WHEREAS, the appeals process from the decisions of the “chief of the bureau of fire 

prevention” needs to be updated; and  
 
 WHEREAS, these amendments are in the best interests of the health, safety and welfare 

of the municipality and its citizens.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, as follows: 

 SECTION 1. The prefatory statements are hereby incorporated herein, and the City 

Council finds these amendments to be in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 

municipality and its citizens. 

 SECTION 2.  Chapter 10, Article I, Section 10-2 is amended by substitution to read: 

Sec. 10-2. - Same—Definitions.  

(a) Wherever the word "municipality" is used in the fire prevention code adopted by 

section 10-1, it shall be held to mean the City of Tupelo, Mississippi.  

- 13 -

Item # 3.



 2 

(b) Wherever the term "corporation counsel" is used in the fire prevention code adopted 

by section 10-1, it shall be held to mean the attorney for the city.  

(c) Wherever the term “Chief of the Bureau of Fire Prevention” is used in the fire 

prevention code adopted by section 10-1, it shall be held to mean the City of Tupelo Fire 

Marshal or his/her designee.  

 (d) Wherever the term “Fire Code Official” is used in the International Fire Code,  2018 

 Edition adopted by section 10-1, it shall be held to mean the City of Tupelo Fire Marshal 

 or his/her designee.  

 SECTION 3.  Chapter 10, Article I, Section 10-4 is amended by substitution to read: 

Sec. 10-4. - Same—Appeals from decisions under.  

 Whenever the Chief of the Bureau of Fire Prevention shall disapprove an application or 

refuse to grant a permit applied for, or when it is claimed that the provisions of the code adopted 

by section 10-1 do not apply or that the true intent and meaning of the code have been 

misconstrued or wrongly interpreted, the applicant may appeal the decision of the Chief of the 

Bureau of Fire Prevention to the Tupelo License Commission. Any such petition shall be filed 

with the Fire Department or Department of Development Services within (5) days from the date 

of the decision and notice is received by the appellant, applicant or petitioner. 

 SECTION 4. Chapter 10, Article 1, Section 10-5 is amended by substitution to read: 

Sec. 10-5. - Same—New materials, processes or occupancies which may require permits.  

 The Chief of the Bureau of Fire Prevention shall determine and specify, after giving 

affected persons an opportunity to be heard, any new materials, processes or occupancies which 

shall require permits, in addition to those now enumerated in the code adopted by section 10-1. 

- 14 -

Item # 3.



 3 

The Chief of the Bureau of Fire Prevention shall post such list in a conspicuous place in his 

office, and distribute copies thereof to interested persons. 

 SECTION 5. This amendatory ordinance has been articulated to be consistent with the 

constitution and laws of the State of Mississippi.  The City Council finds that this amendatory 

ordinance does not violate any provision of the United States Constitution and laws.  In the event 

that any court of competent jurisdiction finds that any provision of this amendatory ordinance is 

unconstitutional or invalid, the remainder shall stay in full force and effect.  

 SECTION 6. All ordinances, resolutions or orders in conflict herewith are repealed, 

effective thirty (30) days after passage of this amendment. 

 SECTION 7. This ordinance shall become effective on the thirtieth (30th) day following 

the adoption hereof.  The City Council Clerk shall cause the ordinance to be published one (1) 

time in a local newspaper with a general circulation.  

 The foregoing ordinance was proposed in a motion by Council Member                  ,         

seconded by Council Member                    , and after discussion, no council member having 

called for a reading, was brought to a vote as follows: 

 

  Council Member Chad Mims    _____ 
  Council Member Lynn Bryan    _____ 
  Council Member Travis Beard    _____   
  Council Member Nettie Davis   _____ 
  Council Member Buddy Palmer   _____ 
  Council Member Janet Gaston   _____ 
  Council Member Rosie Jones    _____ 
   

 
   

- 15 -

Item # 3.



 4 

 Whereupon, the motion having received a majority of affirmative votes, the President of 

the Council declared that the Ordinance had been passed and adopted on this the ____ day of 

November, 2022.  

 

       CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 
 
      BY: ____________________________________ 
             LYNN BRYAN, President 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
MISSY SHELTON, Clerk of the Council 
 
 
      
      APPROVED: 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      TODD JORDAN, Mayor 
 
       
      DATE   
 
 

- 16 -

Item # 3.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Missy Shelton, Council Clerk 

DATE November 9, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 1, 2022 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
  

 

Request:  

For your approval. 

 

- 17 -

Item # 4.



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MUNICIPAL MINUTES CITY OF TUPELO 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI 

NOVEMBER 01, 2022 

Be it remembered that a regular meeting of the Tupelo City Council was held in the Council Chambers 

in the City Hall building on Tuesday, November 1, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. with the following in attendance: 

Council Members Chad Mims, Lynn Bryan, Travis Beard, Nettie Davis, Buddy Palmer and Rosie Jones; 

Ben Logan, City Attorney and Missy Shelton, Clerk of the Council. Council Member Janet Gaston was 

absent. Council Member Rosie Jones gave the invocation, and Council Member Chad Mims led the 

pledge of allegiance. Council President Lynn Bryan called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

CONFIRMATION OR AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA AND AGENDA ORDER 

Council Member Beard moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve the agenda and 

agenda order, as presented. APPENDIX A 

IN THE MATTER OF PROCLAMATION FOR NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE MONTH 

Mayor Todd Jordan presented a proclamation to Ms. Sarah Bell Harris, Regent of the Mary Stuart 

Chapter of MSDAR, who then read the Proclamation to Declare November as Native American 

Heritage Month. APPENDIX B 

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 

The following employees were recognized for the service with the City of Tupelo: 

Jan Pannell             CVB      10 years 

Jennie Bradford Curlee         CVB           10 years 

PUBLIC RECOGNITION 

Council Member Nettie Davis told everyone about Mission Mississippi, who will be in Tupelo on 

November 9. She invited everyone to attend the Community Thanksgiving Service at the Link Centre on 

November 16 and reminded everyone to be sure to vote on November 8. 

Council Member Travis Beard said that he took his grandchildren to Disney on Ice at the Cadence Bank 

Arena and everything was great. He commended Kevan Kirkpatrick and his staff on a job well done. 

Council Member Chad Mims said that he attended the 'Dance with the King' event last weekend and it 

was a great time. 

Council Member Rosie Jones thanked everyone who participated in the Haven Acres Trunk or Treat 

event. She said it was very well attended. 

- 18 -

Item # 4.



Council Member Buddy Palmer reminded everyone that Veterans Day is November 11 and that a 

program is scheduled at Veterans Park. 

Council Member Lynn Bryan thanked all the neighborhoods for the great job of providing 'trick or treat' 

in a safe manner. 

MAYOR'S REMARKS 

Mayor Todd Jordan thanked all the neighborhoods for their involvement in the festivities held for 

Halloween and the Fall Festivals. He also thanked all those City employees who helped with the traffic, 

blocking of streets, etc. to keep everyone safe. 

PUBLIC AGENDA 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR LOT MOWING 

No one appeared for the public hearing for lot mowings for the following properties: 

Parcel                Location 

 

077G2518803  1297 LEONARD DR 

089F3030600  222 W BARNES ST 

113B0602200  S GREEN ST 

101H0115002  823 SHUMACOLA TRL 

089P3124600  518 S BROADWAY ST 

 

IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR APPEAL OF DEPARTMENT OF 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AND TUPELO PLANNING COMMITTEE’S DENIAL OF 

APPLICATION COMP22-12 (SOUTHERN HEIGHTS RV PARK) 

The following spoke during the public hearing for the possible RV Park: 

Mr. Kentrel Boyd       3804 S Green St 

Ms. Victoria Ashby      1011 Evelyn Dr 

Ms. Gwendolyn Ewing      1017 Terry Rd 

Ms. Paula Patterson      1112 Evelyn Dr 

APPENDIX C 

APPEALS 

IN THE MATTER OF APPEALS HEARING FOR JEREMIE RICHARDSON OF SOUTHERN 

HEIGHTS RV, LLC 

- 19 -

Item # 4.



An appeal was heard concerning the denial of the Department of Development Services and the Tupelo 

Planning Committee denial of application COMP22-12 (Southern Heights RV Park). The appellant, 

Jeremie Richardson, was given 10 minutes for his appeal. After a session of questions and answers from 

the City Council members, Tanner Newman, Director of DDS, stated the positions of both the 

Department of Development Services and the Planning Committee on their reasons for denial. 

Council Member Jones made a motion to uphold the decision of DDS and the Planning Committee, 

which is to deny the application COMP22-12 (Southern Heights RV Park). Council Member Davis 

seconded the motion. 

Council Member Palmer made a motion to table the decision of the Council until November 15, 2022, 

the next regular meeting of the City Council. Council Member Beard seconded the motion. When called 

for a vote, the vote was as follows: 

Council Member Mims Nay 

Council Member Bryan Nay 

Council Member Beard Aye 

Council Member Davis Aye 

Council Member Palmer Aye 

Council Member Gaston Absent 

Council Member Jones Nay 

The motion failed. 

The motion of Council Member Jones to deny the application was then brought to a vote. The vote was, 

as follow: 

Council Member Mims AYE 

Council Member Bryan AYE 

Council Member Beard AYE 

Council Member Davis AYE 

Council Member Palmer ABSTAIN 

Council Member Gaston ABSENT 

Council Member Jones AYE 

The motion passed and the application COMP 2022-1212 was denied. APPENDIX D 

ACTION AGENDA 

IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING DEVELOPMENT CODE BY 

AMENDING CERTAIN SUB-SECTIONS OF SECTION 5.1 BELLEDEER NEIGHBORHOOD 

CONSERVATION OVERLAY DISTRICT (TA22-03.25) (TABLED AT SEPTEMBER 20, 2022 

MEETING) 

This item will remain on the table. 

- 20 -

Item # 4.



ROUTINE AGENDA 

IN THE MATTER OF MINUTES OF OCTOBER 18, 2022 REGULAR MEETING 

Council Member Beard moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve the minutes of the 

Regular City Council meeting held on October 18, 2022. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in 

favor. 

IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY 

Bills were reviewed at 4:30 p.m. by Council Members Bryan, Beard, and Mims. Council Member Davis 

moved, seconded by Council Member Jones, to approve the payment of the checks, bills, claims and 

utility adjustments.  The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX E 

IN THE MATTER OF ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ITEMS 

Council Member Beard moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve the request for 

advertising and promotional items, as submitted. The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX F 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 FOR GUN CLUB ROAD 

IMPROVEMENTS  

City Engineer Dennis Bonds requested the Council approve Change Order #1 for the Gun Club Road 

Improvement project. The increases in the contract were due to delays not attributable to contractor 

resulting in increased asphalt prices and due to the need for uniformity to define the course of the road 

with curb and gutter, all due to a boundary line dispute with an adjoining property owner. After a brief 

discussion, Council member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Beard, to find the changes 

reasonable and necessary, not intended to circumvent the purchasing laws and to approve Change Order 

#1. The order will increase the original contracted price by $119,046.19, but is still less than the original 

Engineers' estimate of the project. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX G 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF LIEN RESOLUTION FOR UNPAID DEMOLITION 

INVOICE  

Council Member Beard moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to approve a Resolution 

Adjudicating Cost and Assessing Lien Against Real Property, under Miss. Code Ann. 21-19-11(1972 as 

amended) for: 

 

3424 Walsh Rd - Parcel # 075S-16-001-02 

 

Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF PROPERTIES FOR LOT MOWING  

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Jones, to adjudicate the following 

properties on the public hearing lot mowing list, which were in such a condition to be a menace to the 

public health, safety and welfare of the community and in need of mowing pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. 

21-19-11 (1972) as amended. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX I 

- 21 -

Item # 4.



IN THE MATTER OF ACCEPTANCE OF PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES OF 

OCTOBER, 3 2022  

Council Member Beard moved, seconded by Council Member Jones, to accept the Planning Committee 

minutes of October 3, 2023. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX J 

IN THE MATTER OF ACCEPTANCE OF TUPELO LICENSE COMMISSION MINUTES OF 

OCTOBER, 6 2022  

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Beard, to accept the License Committee 

minutes of October 5, 2022. Of those present, the vote was unanimous. APPENDIX K 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF BELLEDEER OVERLAY DESIGN REVIEW 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS FOR 2022-2023  

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve the election results of 

the Belledeer Overlay Design Review Committee, as follows: 

1. Amy Blossom 

2. Edwin Crenshaw 

3. Eric Gibens 

4. Danielle Ratliff 

5. Jessica Roy 

6. Rebecca Van Horn 

7. Rachel Pierce Waide 

Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX L 

IN THE MATTER OF REQUEST TO SURPLUS VEHICLE FOR AUCTION  

Council Member Beard moved, seconded by Council Member Jones, to approve the surplus of a 2009 

Toyota Prius Hybrid VIN JTDKB20U993467396, no longer usable or needed by the City of Tupelo 

Development Services Department, and to sell at auction. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in 

favor. APPENDIX M 

IN THE MATTER OF REQUEST TO SURPLUS AND TRADE IN ASSETS TOWARDS THE 

PURCHASE OF NEW OFFICE FURNITURE 

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Beard, to surplus the following assets 

located in the Development Services Department, and accept a trade-in amount of $600 towards the 

purchase of replacements: 

 

9 Harter Steel Chairs - Metal and Leather - Green and Tax 

 

Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX N 

IN THE MATTER OF SURPLUSING WEAPON FOR RETIREMENT – JOHN KNIGHT   

- 22 -

Item # 4.



Council Member Beard moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to surplus the Glock model 45 

9mm, SN BKLY673 and allow John Knight to purchase same in the amount of $1.00 upon his 

retirement from the City of Tupelo Police Department, as permissible under Mississippi State Statue 45-

9-131.  Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX O 

IN THE MATTER OF SOLE SOURCE AND AGREEMENT WITH FLOCK SAFETY  

Council Member Beard moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve the Sole Source 

request from Police Chief John Quaka for the 2-year personal services agreement with Flock Safety Inc. 

for the use of 14 Flock Safety Falcon License Plate Reader (LPR) cameras and 2 Falcon Flex LPR 

cameras and the use of the company’s software, database and operating system that could integrate with 

other digital law enforcement tools. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. The supporting 

justification for this single source procurement is included in the appendix for this item. APPENDIX P 

IN THE MATTER OF NORTH MISSISSIPPI NARCOTICS UNIT INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT 

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Beard, to approve the North Mississippi 

Narcotics Unit Interlocal Agreement for 2022-2023. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. 

APPENDIX Q 

IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDER RESCINDING COUNCIL ACTION OF SEPTEMBER 20, 

2022 TO APPROVE BID # 2022-032PD – THE PURCHASE OF NINE FORD EXPLORER 

POLICE UNIT UPFIT PACKAGES  

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Beard, to rescind Council action of 

September 20, 2022 to approve Bid # 2022-032PD - Purchase of nine Ford Explorer Police Unit Upfit 

packages. The vehicles on which the upfit packages were to be installed are no longer available, and it 

has been determined that a less expensive option is to take bids on the vehicles with the upfit packages 

included. Of those present, the vote was unanimous. APPENDIX R 

IN THE MATTER OF REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO REMOVE ITEMS FROM ASSETS 

AND SURPLUS AT AUCTION AND TO EXECUTE CONTRACT WITH JM WOOD 

AUCTION COMPANY, INC. 

Council Member Beard moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve 'AN ORDER 

DECLARING PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS, AUTHORIZING SALE BY AUCTION, 

SETTING AMOUNT OF SECURITY AND ALLOWING MAYOR AND CIT CLERK TO EXECUTE 

CONTRACT WITH JM WOOD AUCTION COMPANY, INC. Of those present, the vote was 

unanimous in favor. APPENDIX S 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR THE LEE ACRES PICKLEBALL 

COMPLEX 

Council Member Beard moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to approve a contract with Sloan 

Landscape Architect, LLC, for professional services for the Lee Acres Pickleball Complex. Of those 

present, the vote was unanimous. APPENDIX T 

- 23 -

Item # 4.



IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF BID 2022-042AQ - AQUATIC CENTER CHEMICALS 

Sealed bids were received by the City for Bid # 2022-042AQ - Aquatic Center Chemicals. Council 

Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Jones, to award the bid to both Adcock Pool & 

Spa and Memphis Pool Supply, Inc. for the lowest and best bids. Of those present, the vote was 

unanimous in favor. APPENDIX U 

IN THE MATTER OF TUPELO SPORTS COUNCIL CONTRACT APPROVAL 

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Beard, to approve the following FY 2022-

2023 contracts: 

Friends of the Park Agreements  

Tupelo Aquatic Group Agreements  

Tupelo City Museum Association Agreements  

Tupelo Disc Golf Association Agreements  

Tupelo Fourth of July Celebration Agreements  

Tupelo Softball Association Agreements  

Tupelo Skate park Association Agreements  

Tupelo Tennis Association Agreements  

Tupelo Therapeutic Recreation Association Agreements  

Tupelo Youth Baseball Association Agreements  

Tupelo Youth Soccer Association Agreements  

Veterans Council Agreements  

Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor and the contracts are attached as APPENDIX V. 

 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CADENCE BANK ARENA MINUTES OF 

SEPTEMBER 26, 2022 AND SPECIAL CALLED MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 29, 2022  

Council Member Mims moved, seconded by Council Member Jones, to accept the Cadence Bank Arena 

minutes of the September 26 and September 29, 2022, meetings. Of those present, the vote was 

unanimous. APPENDIX W 

IN THE MATTER OF BID AWARD 2022-036WL - SALE OF SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 

At the September 6, 2022, Council meeting, the Council approved the surplus of a 1995 Ditch Witch 

JT820 Boring Machine w/Trailer (S/N 2M810) and the sale of the same by sealed bid. TWL Director 

Johnny Timmons requested that the highest sealed bid in the amount of $7,777.77 be accepted and the 

boring machine be sold for same. Council Member Beard moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, 

to accept the sealed bid of $7,777.77 from JJ Merchant for the sale of the boring machine. Of those 

present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX X 

 

IN THE MATTER OF REQUEST FOR REJECTION OF BID NO. 2022-039WL (CONCRETE 

POLES)   

- 24 -

Item # 4.



Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Jones, to reject bid # 2022-39WL - 

Concrete Poles due to no bids being received. Of those present, the vote was unanimous. APPENDIX Y 

IN THE MATTER OF BID AWARD 2022-040WL WATER MATERIALS (6 MONTH SUPPLY 

BID)  

Sealed bids were received by the City for Bid 2022-040WL - Water Materials (6 month supply). Council 

Member Beard moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to award the lowest and best bids, as 

indicated. The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX Z  

IN THE MATTER OF BID AWARD 2022-037WL - SALE OF SURPLUS PROPERTY 
 

At the September 6, 2022, Council meeting, the Council approved the surplus of a 2001 International 

Sewer Vactor Truck (VIN 1HTGCADT81H405223) and to receive bids on the sale of the machine. 

TWL Director Johnny Timmons requested that the highest sealed bid in the amount of $25,000 be 

accepted and the truck be sold for same. Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member 

Beard, to accept the sealed bid of $25,000.00 from Paul Smithey Construction for the sale of the sewer 

truck. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX AA 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF BID NO. 2022-038WL (SOURCES OF SUPPLY) 

Council Member Beard moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to approve Bid # 2022-038WL 

Sources of Supply for Minor Water/Sewer Construction/Rehab - 12 month supply to the lowest and best 

bid of Paul Smithey Construction Company and M & M UG Video, as indicated on the bid tabulation. 

Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX BB 

IN THE MATTER OF AWARD OF BID # 2022-041WL 

Bids were received for bid # 2022-041WL - LED Luminaire 6-month Supply. TWL Director, Johnny 

Timmons recommended that the bid be awarded to the lowest and best bids of Stuart C. Irby and 

Arkansas Electric, as indicated in APPENDIX P. He explained that although Trastar, Inc. provided the 

lowest price on one of the items, their product does not meet the specifications in the bid. Council 

Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Beard to approve the best bids. Of those present, 

the vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX CC 

IN THE MATTER OF STATE APPROVED HOLIDAYS FOR CITY EMPLOYEES 

Governor Tate Reeves issued a proclamation in accordance with Miss Code Anno. §3-3-7 (1972 as 

amended), authorizing cities, at their discretion, to close all offices on  Friday, November 25, 2022, in 

further observance of the Thanksgiving holiday and on Friday, December 23, 2022, in further 

observance of Christmas. Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to 

approve this proclamation. Of those present, the vote was, as follows:  

 

Yea:  Mims, Beard, Davis, Palmer, and Jones.  

Nay: Bryan 

Absent: Gaston 

The Governor's proclamation is attached as APPENDIX DD. 

- 25 -

Item # 4.



IN THE MATTER OF PURCHASE CONTRACT RATIFICATION AND ACCEPTANCE OF 

DEEDS TO REAL PROPERTY FOR 216 N. SPRING, 218 N. SPRING, 405 CLAYTON 

AVENUE, 1112 CHAPMAN DRIVE, 3304 SOUTH GREEN STREET, AND 320 S. SPRING 

STREET  

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Palmer, to ratify the purchase contracts 

and accept the deeds to real property located at the following addresses: 

216 N Spring St 

218 N Spring St 

405 Clayton Ave 

1112 Chapman Dr 

3304 S Green St 

320 S Spring St 

Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. The contracts and deeds are attached to these 

minutes as APPENDIX EE. 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH JBHM ARCHITECTS, P.A. FOR 

REMODEL OF CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS  

Chief Operations Officer Don Lewis presented a contract for approval between the City of Tupelo and 

JBHM Architects, P.A. for architectural services for the remodel of Council Chambers. Council Member 

Beard moved, seconded by Council Member Jones, to approve the contract. Of those present, the vote 

was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX FF. 

STUDY AGENDA 

IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CH. 7 OF THE TUPELO CODE OF 

ORDINANCES PERTAINING TO BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

Upon the unanimous agreement of the City Council, the MATTER OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 

CH. 7 OF THE TUPELO CODE OF ORDINANCES PERTAINING TO BUILDINGS AND 

BUILDING REGULATIONS was moved from the Study Agenda to the Active Agenda at the next 

Regular meeting of the City Council 

IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CH. 10 OF THE TUPELO CODE OF 

ORDINANCES PERTAINING TO FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION  

Upon the unanimous agreement of the City Council, the MATTER OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 

CH. 10 OF THE TUPELO CODE OF ORDINANCES PERTAINING TO FIRE PREVENTION AND 

PROTECTION was moved from the Study Agenda to the Active Agenda at the next Regular meeting of 

the City Council. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

- 26 -

Item # 4.



Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to determine the need for an 

executive session. Attorney Ben Logan said the session will be for potential litigation and the purchase, 

sale or leasing of lands under Miss. Code Anno. 25-41-7 (b)(g) (1972 as amended). Of those present, the 

vote was unanimous in favor at 7:21 p.m. 

 

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to close the regular session and 

enter executive session for discussion of potential litigation and the purchase, sale or leasing of lands 

under Miss. Code Anno. 25-41-7 (b)(g) (1972 as amended). Of those present, the vote was unanimous in 

favor.   

 

After discussion in executive session, Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member 

Jones to return to the regular meeting at 7:38 p.m. Of those present, the vote was unanimous in favor. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Council at this time, Council Member Palmer 

moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to adjourn the meeting. Of those present, the vote was 

unanimous in favor. 

 

This, the 1st day of November, 2022, at 7:39 p.m. 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Lynn Bryan, President  

City Council 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Missy Shelton, Clerk of the Council 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Todd Jordan, Mayor 

 

        

       _____________________________________ 

       Date 

- 27 -

Item # 4.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO/City Clerk 

DATE November 9, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY KH 
  

 

Request:  

For your approval. 

 

- 28 -

Item # 5.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO 

DATE November 15, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ITEMS KH 
  

 

Request:  

Proposed items for approval are for the purpose of advertising and bringing into favorable notice 

the opportunities, possibilities and resources of the City of Tupelo.  

 

ITEMS: 

MS Radio Group     $299.00 Thanksgiving Greeting from City of Tupelo                 

MS Radio Group  $299.00 Christmas Greeting from City of Tupelo 

 

 

- 29 -

Item # 6.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO 

DATE November 15, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF BUDGET AMENDMENT #1 FOR FY 2023  KH 
  

 

Request:  

Please review and approve amendment #1.  

 

ITEMS: 

Amendment #1 

 

 

 

- 30 -

Item # 7.



City of Tupelo

Fy 2023 Budget Revision #1

 

Whereas, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Tupelo have determined that the budget

estimates and certain increases are needed in the operating departments, it is hereby 

resolved to amend the FY 2023 Budget as follows:

      Original        Amended

      Budget  Amendment        Budget

General Fund Revenues

Local Taxes 7,564,566             7,564,566             

Licenses & Permits 1,190,500             1,190,500             

Intergovernmental Revenues 30,845,493           312,000               31,157,493           

Charges for Services 628,000                 628,000                

Fines & Forfeits 621,000                 621,000                

Interest Income & Misc. Revenues 534,260                 534,260                

Other Financing Resources 255,322                 255,322                

Unreserved Fund Balance -                             -                            -                             

Total General Fund Revenues 41,639,141          312,000              41,951,141          

Purpose: To budget for grant rollovers from FY 2022.

Expenditures:

City Council

Personnel 303,337                 303,337                

Supplies 7,500                     7,500                     

Other Services & Charges 204,150                 204,150                

Capital -                             -                            -                             

Total City Council 514,987               -                          514,987               

Purpose:

Executive Dept.

Personnel 889,125                 889,125                

Supplies 30,000                   30,000                  

Other Services & Charges 304,850                 304,850                

Capital -                             -                            -                             

Total Executive Dept. 1,223,975            -                          1,223,975            

Purpose:

City Court

Personnel 943,143                 943,143                

Supplies 32,300                   32,300                  

Other Services & Charges 109,154                 109,154                

Capital -                             -                            -                             

Total City Court 1,084,597            -                          1,084,597            

Purpose:

1

- 31 -

Item # 7.



      Original        Amended

      Budget  Amendment        Budget

Finance Department

Personnel 839,162                 839,162                
Supplies 27,150                   27,150                  
Other Services & Charges 555,897                 555,897                
Capital 218,100                 68,432                 286,532                

Total Finance Department 1,640,309            68,432                1,708,741            

Purpose: To record prior year grant awards that will be spent in FY 2023.

CVB
Personnel 150,935                 -                            150,935                

Total CVB Expenditures 150,935               -                          150,935               

Purpose:

Human Resources

Personnel 328,957                 328,957                
Supplies 4,100                     4,100                     
Other Services & Charges 126,900                 126,900                
Capital -                             -                            -                             

Total Human Resources 459,957               -                          459,957               

Purpose:

Development Services

Personnel 1,548,918             1,548,918             
Supplies 51,500                   51,500                  
Other Services & Charges 193,300                 193,300                
Capital -                             -                            -                             

Total Development Services 1,793,718            -                          1,793,718            

Purpose:

Police Dept

Personnel 9,518,269             9,518,269             
Supplies 768,000                 768,000                
Other Services & Charges 1,761,019             1,761,019             
Capital 269,500                 243,568               513,068                

Total Police Dept. 12,316,788          243,568              12,560,356          

Purpose: To record prior year grant awards that will be spent in FY 2023.

Fire Dept

Personnel 6,768,174             6,768,174             
Supplies 403,974                 403,974                
Other Services & Charges 284,600                 284,600                
Capital 10,000                   -                            10,000                  

Total Fire Dept. 7,466,748            -                          7,466,748            

Purpose:

2

- 32 -

Item # 7.



      Original        Amended

      Budget  Amendment        Budget

Public Works

Personnel 3,102,454             3,102,454             
Supplies 406,100                 406,100                
Other Services & Charges 2,255,390             2,255,390             
Capital 17,000                   -                            17,000                  

Total Public Works 5,780,944            -                          5,780,944            

Purpose:

Parks & Recreation

Personnel 2,175,831             2,175,831             
Supplies 427,000                 427,000                
Other Services & Charges 1,109,533             1,109,533             
Capital 20,000                   -                            20,000                  

Total Parks & Rec 3,732,364            -                          3,732,364            

Purpose:

Aquatics Facility

Personnel 465,684                 465,684                
Supplies 98,500                   98,500                  
Other Services & Charges 462,000                 462,000                
Capital 10,000                   -                            10,000                  

Total Aquatics Facility 1,036,184            -                          1,036,184            

Purpose:

Museum

Personnel 140,577                 140,577                
Supplies 9,000                     9,000                     
Other Services & Charges 40,100                   40,100                  
Capital 5,000                     -                            5,000                     

Total Museum 194,677               -                          194,677               

Purpose:

Community Services 1,069,672            -                          1,069,672            

Purpose:

Debt Service 325,480               -                          325,480               

Purpose:

Other Financing Uses 2,693,219            -                          2,693,219            

Purpose

Reserves 154,587                     -                                154,587                     

Total General Fund Expenditures 41,639,141          312,000              41,951,141          

3

- 33 -

Item # 7.



      Original        Amended

      Budget  Amendment        Budget

Fund #327
Tupelo Capital & Infrastructure Fund

Revenues
Grants 1,352,972             1,352,972             
Transfer from Other Funds 5,328,099             5,328,099             
Donations 200,000                 200,000                
Bond Proceeds -                             -                             
Unreserved Fund Balance 10,556,708           (965,020)              9,591,688             

Total Revenues 17,437,779          (965,020)            16,472,759          

Expenditures
Other Services & Charges
  Maintenance Projects 274,628                 (1,846)                  272,782                
  Street Overlay 2,896,363             (651,310)              2,245,053             
  Neighborhood Revitalization 850,604                 (7,833)                  842,771                
  Traffic Calming 120,000                 120,000                
  Contingies/Grant Matches -                             -                            -                             

Total Other Services & Charges 4,141,595            (660,989)            3,480,606            

Capital
  Infrastructure Improvements 7,874,297             (416,143)              7,458,154             
  Purchase of Property 767,500                 767,500                
  Equipment 1,099,157             (28,203)                1,070,954             
  Building Improvements 1,453,755             69,632                 1,523,387             
  Park Improvements 1,105,705             101,067               1,206,772             
  Vehicles 389,151                 (27,344)                361,807                
  Police Vehicles/Equipment 373,739                 373,739                
  Fire Equipment/Trucks 232,880                 (3,040)                  229,840                
  Contingencies(Grant Matches) -                             -                            -                             

Total Capital 13,296,184          (304,031)            12,992,153          

Other Financing Uses -                            -                          -                           

Total Expenditures 17,437,779          (965,020)            16,472,759          

Purpose: To correct the true carry over remaining as of 9/30/2022.

4

- 34 -

Item # 7.



Voting

   Councilman Chad Mims

   Councilman Lynn Bryan

   Councilman Travis Beard

   Councilman Nettie Davis  

   Councilman Buddy Palmer  

   Councilman Janet Gaston  

   Councilman Rosie Jones  

 

                                     Approved:

 

President of the Council

City of Tupelo

Attest:

 

Clerk of the Council

                                     ---------------------- 

Mayor

City of Tupelo

Attest:

 

City Clerk

5

- 35 -

Item # 7.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO 

DATE November 15, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF CLOSING MTP PHASE VI BANK ACCOUNT KH 
  

 

Request:  

To close the Major Thoroughfare Phase VI Bank account. The Cadence bank account has a zero 

balance and all funds collected under this program have been expended or transferred to Phase 

VII.   

 

ITEMS: 

Resolution/Order 

 

 

- 36 -

Item # 8.



ORDER 

 

AN ORDER OF THE GOVERNING AUTHORITIES OF THE CITY OF TUPELO 

AUTHORIZING THE CLOSURE OF THE MAJOR THOROUGHFARE PLAN PHASE 

VI PROJECT FUND AND TO AUTHORIZE THE TRANSFER OF ANY EXCESS 

MONIES INTO THE MAJOR THOROUGHFARE PLAN PHASE VII PROJECT FUND 

 

WHEREAS, the Governing authorities of the City of Tupelo are granted with the authority 

for the care, management and control of the municipal affairs and its property and finances 

pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 21-7-5 (1972, as amended); and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Tupelo, Mississippi has assessed a 10-mills ad valorem tax levy, the 

proceeds of which shall be used for the implementation of the priorities of the Major 

Thoroughfare Plan as established by ordinance; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Tupelo by and through its governing authorities, did on March 1, 

2016, establish the street improvement priorities for Phase VI of the Major Thoroughfare Plan 

and authorized the City’s financial officer to establish at the municipal depository a Major 

Thoroughfare Plan Phase VI Project Fund for the safekeeping of all proceeds from the 10-mills 

tax levy; and 

 

WHEREAS, all projects established as priorities for Phase VI of the Major Thoroughfare 

Plan have reached completion and all expenses associated with those priorities have been paid.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Tupelo order the 

following:  

 

1. The prefatory findings are hereby adopted and found to be in accordance with the 

warranted and necessary exercise of municipal authority under the laws of the State 

of Mississippi.  

2. All funds established for the safekeeping of Major Thoroughfare Plan Phase VI 

monies shall be closed.  

3. All excess monies previously appropriated for Major Thoroughfare Plan Phase VI 

projects shall be transferred to the Major Thoroughfare Plan Phase VII project fund 

held at the municipal depository.   

4. The Mayor and/or City Clerk are empowered to execute all documents and 

agreements necessary to effectuate the terms of this order.  

 

After a full discussion of this matter, Council Member _________________ moved that 

the foregoing Order be adopted and said motion was seconded by Council Member 

______________________and upon the question being put to a vote, the results were as 

follows: 

 

Councilmember Mims voted    

Councilmember L. Bryan voted    

Councilmember Beard voted    

- 37 -

Item # 8.



Councilmember Davis voted    

Councilmember Palmer voted    

Councilmember Gaston voted    

Councilmember Jones voted    

 

The motion having received the affirmative vote of a majority of the members 

present, the President declared the motion carried and the order adopted. 

 

 

WHEREUPON, the foregoing Resolution was declared passed and adopted at a 

regular meeting of the Tupelo City Council on this the ____ day of ____________ 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

LYNN BRYAN, Council President 

 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

MISSY SHELTON, Council Clerk  

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

TODD JORDAN, Mayor 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

DATE 

 

 

- 38 -

Item # 8.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO 

DATE November 15, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF CLOSING 2011 G.O. BOND FUND BANK ACCT KH 
  

 

Request:  

To close the 2011 G.O. Bond Fund Account. The Cadence bank account has a zero balance and 

all bond proceeds have been expended in accordance to the intent resolution.   

 

ITEMS: 

Resolution/Order 

 

 

- 39 -

Item # 9.



ORDER 

 

AN ORDER OF THE GOVERNING AUTHORITIES OF THE CITY OF TUPELO 

AUTHORIZING THE CLOSURE OF THE 2011 GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND 

FUND  

 

WHEREAS, the Governing authorities of the City of Tupelo are granted with the authority 

for the care, management and control of the municipal affairs and its property and finances 

pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 21-7-5 (1972, as amended); and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Tupelo, Mississippi, at a regular meeting of the City Council on 

November 1, 2011, declared its intent to issue General Obligation Bonds, Series 2011, in a 

principal amount not to exceed Three Million Nine Hundred Ninety-five Thousand Dollars 

($3,995,000) for certain infrastructure improvements as declared in the intent; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Tupelo by and through its governing authorities, did on December 

6, 2011, issue general obligation bonds in accordance with its stated intent and the laws of the 

State of Mississippi and did create the 2011 Bond Fund and establish that the monies deposited 

into the Fund shall be used for the payment of principal and interest due on the bonds; and 

 

WHEREAS, all payments of principal and interest owed from the 2011 Bond Fund for the 

repayment of General Obligation Bonds have been made in accordance with the terms of the 

City’s stated intent; and  

 

WHEREAS, the 2011 Bond Fund is no longer needed for any municipal or related purpose. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Tupelo order the 

following:  

 

1. The prefatory findings are hereby adopted and found to be in accordance with the 

warranted and necessary exercise of municipal authority under the laws of the State 

of Mississippi.  

2. The 2011 Bond Fund is no longer needed for any of its stated purposes and shall be 

closed.  

3. The Mayor and/or City Clerk are empowered to execute all documents and 

agreements necessary to effectuate the terms of this order.  

 

After a full discussion of this matter, Council Member _________________ moved that 

the foregoing Order be adopted and said motion was seconded by Council Member 

______________________and upon the question being put to a vote, the results were as 

follows: 

 

Councilmember Mims voted    

Councilmember L. Bryan voted    

Councilmember Beard voted    

Councilmember Davis voted    

- 40 -

Item # 9.



Councilmember Palmer voted    

Councilmember Gaston voted    

Councilmember Jones voted    

 

The motion having received the affirmative vote of a majority of the members 

present, the President declared the motion carried and the order adopted. 

 

 

WHEREUPON, the foregoing Resolution was declared passed and adopted at a 

regular meeting of the Tupelo City Council on this the ____ day of ____________ 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

LYNN BRYAN, Council President 

 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

MISSY SHELTON, Council Clerk  

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

TODD JORDAN, Mayor 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

DATE 

 

 

- 41 -

Item # 9.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Administrator 

DATE 15 November 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF ENGINEER RECOMMENDATION 

FOR ARC COOPER TIRE PROJECT AC 
  

Request: After a selection committee on 31 October, Cook Coggin is the recommended engineer 

for the Cooper Tire Sewer Lift Station and Main Force project. Seeking approval of this 

recommendation by the selection committee.  

- 42 -

Item # 10.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE November 15, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE PROPERTIES FOR LOT 

MOWING TN 
  

 

Request:  

Pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. 1972, § 21-19-11, review and approve final lot mowing list. 

- 43 -

Item # 11.



Preliminary Lot Mowing Report for 11/15/2022 
 

 Violation Ref Parcel Location Owner Owner Address Owner City State Zip Inspector 

1.  43472 106C1302000 2304 MARION 
ST 

BUMPHIS TERRY 
& JEWEL 

2300 MARION TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

2.   43473 106C1316500 1012 
BICKERSTAFF ST 

TUTOR LEE LLC 2000 N GLOSTER ST TUPELO, MS 38804 RS 

3.   43474 106C1316400 1010 
BICKERSTAFF ST 

TUCKER LEUNDRA 
& DAMITA 

106 CR RD 1046 TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

4.   43475 106G1307700 3067 
MONTEREY DR 

JACKSON PATRICK 
F 

3067 MONTEREY DR TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

5.   43482 105H1509800 3319 ROBERT 
KENNEDY DR 

MOORE TONY A 
SR & BERNICE 

109  BELWOOD COVE BELDEN, MS 38826 RS 

6.   43498 101D0123400 1301 
LAWNDALE DR 

HOPE 
TRANSPORTATION 
LLC 

P O BOX 3295 TUPELO, MS 38803 SB 

7.   43509 113N0702100 1302 ERIN ST FERNANDEZ 
EARNESTO 
MANUEL 

1302 ERIN STREET TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

8.   43517 106C1314500 1013 TERRY RD GRAB THE MAP 
LLC 

1013 W MAIN ST TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

9.   43519 106D1300101 1439 MITCHELL 
RD UNIT A 

PERKINS MIKE P O BOX 3231 TUPELO, MS 38803 RS 

10.   43534 106D1307600 909 PARISH DR TALLEY DANA L 909 PARISH DR TUPELO, MS 38801 RS 

11.          

12.          

 

- 44 -

Item # 11.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE Nov. 15, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING DEVELOPMENT 

CODE BY AMENDING CERTAIN SUB-SECTIONS OF SECTION 5.1 

BELLEDEER NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION OVERLAY DISTRICT 

(TA22-03.25) TN 
  

 

CITY COUNCIL MOVED ITEM (TA22-03) FROM STUDY AGENDA TO ACTION 

AGENDA AT SEPT. 6, 2022 MEETING. ITEM WAS TABLED AT SEPT. 20, 2022 

MEETING. 

 

Request:  

Review and Approve final updated ordinance.    

- 45 -

Item # 12.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE Nov. 15, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE RESOLUTION ADOPTING 

REDISTRICTING CRITERIA FOR THE REDSTRICTING OF THE CITY OF 

TUPELO’S WARD LINES FOLLOWING THE 2020 CENSUS TN 
  

 

Request:  

Review and approve attached resolution.  

 

- 46 -

Item # 13.



 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

ADOPTING REDISTRICTING CRITERIA FOR THE REDSTRICTING OF THE 

MUNINCIPALITY’S WARD LINES FOLLOWING THE 2020 CENSUS, AND FOR 

RELATED PURPOSES  

WHEREAS, as a result of the 2020 Census, the boundaries of Tupelo, Mississippi’s 

(“Municipality”) seven wards require redistricting in accordance with applicable state and federal 

law; 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Governing Body”) of the Municipality have engaged redistricting 

legal experts and consultants to assist the Municipality in its redistricting efforts; and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body now desires to adopt certain redistricting principles to serve as 

a roadmap for drafting ward boundaries. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body for and on behalf of the 

Municipality as follows: 

Section 1.  That any redistricting plan to be considered and adopted by the Governing Body, 

shall comply with the U.S. Constitution, the Mississippi Constitution, applicable state and federal 

law, including the Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended, and such plan shall also contain 

contiguous districts within +/- 5% deviation from the ideal district population. In addition to these 

primary criteria and to the extent practicable, the Governing Body will comply with the Voting 

Rights Act, will adhere to the constitutional one-person, one-vote rule, and ensure existing 

minority represented wards will not decrease in number. The Governing Body will also maintain 

compact ward boundaries and will take all possible measures to keep intact communities with 

established ties of common interest and association.  The Governing Body will also separate 

incumbents into individual districts, maintain core retention of existing Wards, and, where 

possible, follow natural geographic boundaries in drawing ward lines. 

Section 2. That upon completion of any draft redistricting map adhering to the criteria adopted 

herein, the Governing Body shall order and set a public hearing to provide the public an 

opportunity to review and comment on the redistricting process. 

- 47 -

Item # 13.



 

 

Following the reading of the foregoing resolution, Councilperson ___________________ 

made a motion for its adoption and Councilperson ________________________ seconded the 

motion.  The Mayor put the question to a vote as follows: 

Councilman Mims  voted: _______ 

Councilman Bryan  voted: _______ 

Councilman Beard  voted: _______ 

Councilwoman Davis  voted: _______ 

Councilman Palmer  voted: _______ 

Councilwoman Gaston voted: _______ 

Councilwoman Jones  voted: _______ 

 

The motion having received the unanimous affirmative vote of the City Council of Tupelo, 

Mississippi, the Mayor declared the motion carried and the resolution adopted, on this the _____ 

day of ________________, 2022.         

 

       ______________________________ 

       Lynn Bryan, President 

       City Council 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________   

Missy Shelton, Clerk of the Council 

 

APPROVED: 

         

         

       ______________________________ 

       Todd Jordan, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________   

Kim Hanna, City Clerk 

- 48 -

Item # 13.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE Nov. 15, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE CONTRACT FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF TUPELO AND 

THREE RIVERS PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT TN 
  

 

Request:  

Review and approve attached contract.  

 

- 49 -

Item # 14.



CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

BETWEEN 

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

AND 

THREE RIVERS PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
SCOPE OF WORK 

Three Rivers Planning & Development District (TRPDD) will provide Redistricting Services 

as follows:  

A. Map drawing of District Boundaries and Supporting Data  

TRPDD will draw district boundaries using agreed upon methodology and parameters 

established by the Local Government to meet U.S. Department of Justice guidelines and 

traditional redistricting principles.  Supporting demographic data will be in tabular form in 

an Excel file format and the mapping data will be provided in hard copy and digital formats.   

B. Work Sessions with Local Government  

TRPDD will meet a reasonable number of times the Local Government Council and /or 

designated Redistricting Committee.  The initial meeting will be to agree upon 

methodology and criteria for drawing the district boundaries and to agree upon a schedule 

for the project.  The following meetings, as necessary, will be work sessions to review the 

maps and data provided by TRPDD and the final meeting will be to adopt a final 

redistricting plan by the Council.   

C. Public Meeting Materials and Support   

In addition to the work sessions set forth in Section B above, TRPDD will provide 

supportive maps and data for a public hearing to present a draft plan to the public for 

comment prior to final adoption of one redistricting plan by the Council.  TRPDD staff will 

be on hand to attend these hearings and will be available to answer questions concerning 

the mapping work and related data produced.  The Council will be responsible for the 

scheduling of these meetings, the public notice of these meetings, and any required legal 

record of the meeting.  

D.  Required Submission 

The Council will be responsible for preparing the final documents for any required 

submission. TRPDD will assist in this process by providing maps and digital files and any 

other necessary materials created during the redistricting process.  TRPDD will work with 

the Council to develop the required data necessary for this submission.   

 

DELIVERABLES  

TRPDD will provide working maps and table for discussion during work sessions with the 

Council.  TRPDD will also provide maps and table for the public hearings and will deliver a 

final set of paper maps outlining the district boundaries and provide the digital files and 

supporting tabular data to the Council.    

SCHEDULE OF WORK 

- 50 -

Item # 14.



TRPDD will begin work on the project as soon as this proposal has been agreed to and upon 

release of the Census Data and in coordination with the Council. The schedule is contingent 

upon the timely delivery of 2020 census data from the United States Census Bureau and the 

availability of the Council.  Upon approval of this engagement, TRPDD will schedule the 

first meeting with the Council in accordance with Section B above to develop a schedule for 

the proposed work and to discuss the methodology and criteria for the same.   

 

COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

TRPDD will provide these comprehensive redistricting services for a total flat fee of 

$11,500. 

 
The effective date of this contract shall be ____________________, ______  , 2022. 
 

 
 

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
 
 

Lynn Bryan, President 
City Council  

 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 

Missy Shelton,  
Clerk of the Council 

 
 

 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI  

 
________________________________________ 
Todd Jordan, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

_______________________________________   
Kim Hanna, City Clerk 

 

 

THREE RIVERS 
PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

 

Vernon R. Kelley, III 
Executive Director 

 
 
 

ATTEST: 

 

John Byers, CED Director 

- 51 -

Item # 14.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Alex Farned, Director 

DATE November 9, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF TPRD ADVISORY BOARD 
MINUTES FOR AUGUST 2022 AF 

  

 

Request:  

Attached are the Tupelo Parks and Recreation Advisory Board minutes.   

 

- 52 -

Item # 15.



 

Parks Advisory Board and 

Sports Council Meeting 

August 9, 2022 

 

 
Advisory Members Present 

Robin Faucette, Ward 1 

Mike Maynard, Ward 2 

Cheryl Dexter, Ward 6 

Mattie Mabry, Ward 7 

Jim Ingram, President TSC 

 

 

 

Advisory Member Absent 

Vacant, Ward 3 

Boyce Grayson, Ward 4 

Davey Cole, Ward 5 
 

Staff Present 

Alex Farned, Director 

Deana Carlock, Office Manager 

Laura Kramer, Sports Director 

Amy Kennedy, Aquatic Director 

Leigh Ann Mattox, Recreation Director 
Chris Edmondson, Sports Director 

Janet Gaston, City Council Representative 

 

Staff Absent 

Ben Haas, Sports Director 
Leesha Faulkner, Oren Dunn Museum Curator 

Chad Mims, City Council Representative 

 

1. Robin Faucette called the meeting to order. 

 

2. Mike Maynard made the motion to approve the agenda with Mattie Mabry making the second.  

Pass unanimously. 

 

3. Cheryl Dexter made the motion to accept the minutes with Mike making the second.  Pass 

unanimously. 

 

4. Jim Ingram made the motion to accept the treasure report with Mattie making the second.  Pass 

unanimously. 

 

5. Member Reports 
 

a. Tupelo Youth Soccer Association – Report received. 

b. Tupelo Youth Baseball Association – Report received. 

c. Tupelo Softball Association – Report received. 

d. Tupelo Basketball Association – Report received. 

e. Tupelo Tennis Association – Report received. 

f. Tupelo Therapeutic Recreation Association – Report received. 

g. Tupelo Aquatic Club – Report received. 

h. Tupelo Disc Golf Association – Report received. 

i. Tupelo Skate Park Association – Report received. 

j. Tupelo Flag Football Association – Report received. 

k. Friends of the Park – Report received. 

l. Tupelo Fourth of July Celebration Association – Report received.  

m. Veterans Council – Report received. 

- 53 -

Item # 15.



 

n. Oren Dun Museum Association 

6. The Board was updated on the Skate Park project. 

 

7. The Board was updated on all of the drainage issues at Ballard Park. 

 

8. The Board was updated on the contracts for Sports Council. 

 

9. The Board was given an update on the pickleball league. 

 

10. The Board was updated on the FY22-23 Budget. 

 

11. The Board was informed about the process for Capital Projects Requests. 

 

12. The Board was provided a calendar of events. 

 

13. Cheryl made a motion to adjourn with Mike making the second.  Pass unanimously. 

 

 

 

Robin Faucette – Chairman of Tupelo Parks Advisory Board 

 

 

Jim Ingram –President of Tupelo Sports Council 

 

      

Alex Farned – Director of Tupelo Parks and Recreation 

 

- 54 -

Item # 15.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Alex Farned 

DATE October 27, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR THE SKATE PARK 

AF 
  

 

Request:  

I would like to recommend that the City Council and Mayor approve the contract for Grindline 

Skateparks, Inc. 

Note:  The contract is attached to this request. 

- 55 -

Item # 16.



- 56 -

Item # 16.



- 57 -

Item # 16.



- 58 -

Item # 16.



- 59 -

Item # 16.



- 60 -

Item # 16.



- 61 -

Item # 16.



- 62 -

Item # 16.



- 63 -

Item # 16.



- 64 -

Item # 16.



- 65 -

Item # 16.



- 66 -

Item # 16.



- 67 -

Item # 16.



- 68 -

Item # 16.



- 69 -

Item # 16.



- 70 -

Item # 16.



- 71 -

Item # 16.



- 72 -

Item # 16.



- 73 -

Item # 16.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Ben Logan, City Attorney 

DATE November 9, 2022 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF AMENDMENT TO 

DAYBRITE/SIGNIFY/THRELKELD BUILDING LEASE TO PROVIDE 

OPTION TO PURCHASE FACILITY IF APPROVED BY MISSISSIPPI 

DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (MDA) 
  

 

Request:  

Lessee has requested to amend lease to add option to purchase. Some of these industrial leases 

contained buyout provisions; some did not. The original and subsequent leases with Daybrite and 

its successors did not. The leases did provide for the ability to amend, and statutory authority 

exists to amend to add option to purchase. The authority requires approval by MDA. The like 

kind exchange contemplated in the proposed option to purchase meets or exceeds fair market 

value. 

 

Attachments include: 

 

1. Resolution 

2. Amendment to Lease 

3. Like kind exchange agreement. 

 

BML 

 

- 74 -

Item # 17.



3010848 

RESOLUTION 

RESOLUTION GRANTING THRELDKELD ENTERPRISES, LLC 

OPTION TO PROPERTY AND IMPROVEMENTS 

WHEREAS, Threldkeld Enterprises, LLC, a Mississippi limited liability company, 

(“Enterprises”) is the tenant and The City of Tupelo, Mississippi (the “City”) is the landlord of 

certain real property consisting of approximately 12.85 acres located at 776 S. Green Street in the 

City of Tupelo, Lee County, MS, more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference, and the improvements located thereon (collectively “the 

Premises”) by virtue of (i) an Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated as of December 10, 

2021 between Genlyte Thomas Group, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Genlyte”) 

and Enterprises whereby the leasehold interests of the tenant under the Prior Leases” (as defined 

below) were assigned to and assumed by Enterprises, (ii) a Consent to Assignment and Assumption 

Agreement dated as of December 10, 2021 (the “Consent”) executed by the City for the benefit of 

Enterprises and Genlyte whereby the City consented to the assignment of the leasehold interests 

of the tenant under the Prior Leases to Enterprises, and (iii) the Lease Agreement dated December 

10, 2021 (the “2021 Lease”) by and between the City and Enterprises which amended and restated 

all of the Prior Leases: and 

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions of the Prior Leases were amended and restated in 

the Lease Agreement dated December 10, 2021 (the “2021 Lease”) by and between the City and 

Enterprises, which 2021 Lease now governs and controls the leasing of the Premises by the City 

to Enterprises; and 

WHEREAS, prior tenants of the Premises have leased the Premises from the City through 

the following instruments (collectively, the “Prior Leases”): 

1. [Lease No. 1805] Contract dated March 28, 1946, by and between the City of 

Tupelo (“City) and Day-Brite Lighting Inc. (“Day-Brite”), as amended by 

Amendment to Contract and Lease Agreement dated March , 1964, by and between 

the City and Emerson Electric Co. (“Emerson”), as successor in interest to Day-

Brite 

2. [Lease No. 1808A] Agreement dated December 23, 1953, by and between the City 

and Day-Brite, as supplemented by Addendum dated November 10, 1954, by and 

between the City and Day-Brite, and as amended by Amendment to Contract and 

Lease Agreement dated March 7, 1964, by and between the City and Emerson 

3. [Lease No. 1807] Lease Agreement dated March 7, 1964, by and between the City 

and Emerson 

4. [Lease No. 1808] Lease Agreement dated September 16, 1968 (effective as of 

January 1, 1966), by and between the City and Emerson 

WHEREAS, the City issued bonds pursuant to the Prior Leases described above (and any 

amendments thereto) and all principal owed on such bonds together with all interest and charges 

- 75 -

Item # 17.



2 
3010848 

of any nature due with respect thereto have been paid in full and all such bonds are now satisfied 

and retired; and 

WHEREAS, the City has the authority to dispose of the Premises under Section 57-1-45 

Miss. Code Ann. (1972); and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend the 2021 Lease to grant Enterprises an option to 

acquire the Premises and the improvements thereon (the “Option”) on the terms and conditions set 

forth in the Amendment to Lease Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “2” (the “Amendment to 

Lease Agreement”) and incorporated herein by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the Option provides for Enterprises to acquire the Premises by entering into 

a multi-party like kind exchange with the City and Mid So. Properties, Inc. whereby the City will 

receive fee simple title to the approximately 17.18 acre tract located north of Elizabeth Street in 

the City (the “Elizabeth Street Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Amendment to Lease Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 

“B” and the Like Kind Exchange Agreement attached thereto and incorporated therein by reference 

as Exhibit “3” will each promote, protect and safeguard the public interest and further the purpose 

of Title 57, Chapter 1 of the Mississippi Code Annotated. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby resolved and ordered by the city council of the City of 

Tupelo, Mississippi, as follows: 

1. The prefatory paragraphs of this Resolution are incorporated herein and hereby 

found and determined to be in accordance with the necessary and warranted 

exercise of authority by the City of Tupelo, that is, the granting of the Option to 

Enterprises for the Premises described in Exhibit “A.” 

2. This Resolution shall be submitted to the Mississippi Development Authority for 

its consideration under Section 57-1-45, Miss. Code Ann. (1972) as well as any 

other necessary regulatory agencies. 

3. Enterprises and the City shall agree on a due diligence period during which (i) 

Enterprises will conduct at its sole expense any tests, inspections, appraisals or 

other investigations that Enterprises deems necessary for the Premises, and (ii) the 

City will conduct at its sole expense any tests, inspections, appraisals or other 

investigations that the City deems necessary for the Elizabeth Street Property. 

4. Prior to exercise of the Option, Enterprises may obtain a title certificate and/or 

commitment for title insurance showing marketable title to the Premises, subject to 

standard exceptions. 

5. The City may condition the Closing upon receipt of a title certificate and/or 

commitment for title insurance showing marketable title to the Elizabeth Street 

Property subject to standard exceptions. 

- 76 -

Item # 17.



3 
3010848 

After a full discussion of this matter, Council Member ________________________ 

moved, seconded by Council Member ________________________, the foregoing Resolutions 

be adopted, and upon the question being put to a vote, the results were as follows: 

Councilmember Bryan voted ____________ 

Councilmember Beard voted ____________ 

Councilmember Davis voted ____________ 

Councilmember Palmer voted ____________ 

Councilmember Gaston voted ____________ 

Councilmember Jones voted ____________ 

Councilmember Mims voted ____________ 

 

The motion having received the affirmation vote of a majority of the members present, the 

President declared the motion carried and the Resolution adopted. 

WHEREUPON, the foregoing Resolution was declared, passed and adopted at a regular 

meeting of the Council on this the ____ day of November, 2022. 

 

 CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 

By:     ___________ 

City Council President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Clerk of the Council 

 

 

 APPROVED: 

 

    ___________ 

Todd Jordan, Mayor 

 

___________________________________ 

Date 

 

- 77 -

Item # 17.



4 
3010848 

AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENTS 

This Amendment is entered into by and between the City of Tupelo, Mississippi 

(“Landlord”), and Threldkeld Enterprises, LLC (“Tenant”), respecting the premises commonly 

known as _________ South Green Street, Tupelo, Mississippi (the “Premises”). 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, Landlord is the landlord and Tenant is the current tenant under a Lease 

Agreement dated as of December 7, 2021 by and between Landlord, Tenant and Genlyte Thomas 

Group, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “2021 Lease”) respecting the Premises, a 

copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “1”, and incorporated herein by this reference: 

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the Lease pursuant to this Amendment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant do hereby agree and amend the Leases as 

follows: 

1. Option to Purchase.  Landlord hereby agrees that all bonds issued pursuant to the 

Leases and any amendments thereto have been fully paid and retired, together with all interest and 

charges in connection therewith.  Tenant shall have the exclusive and irrevocable option to acquire 

all of the Premises, and all buildings and improvements thereon (the “Option”) by transferring and 

causing to be transferred to the City by special warranty deed the real property described on Exhibit 

“2” attached hereto (the “Elizabeth Street Property”) free and clear of all liens and encumbrances 

other than ad valorem taxes for 2022 which the transferors shall be responsible for paying for that 

part of the year prior to the date of transfer.  Tenant may exercise the Option by providing written 

notice thereof to Landlord of its desire to purchase the Premises (the “Notice”).  The closing of the 

transfer of the Premises to Tenant (the “Closing”) shall take place at a time and location mutually 

acceptable to Landlord and Tenant.  In consideration of the transfer of the Elizabeth Street Property 

to Landlord, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant, at Closing, a good and sufficient special warranty 

deed and bill of sale conveying fee simple title to the Premises, including all fixtures, 

improvements and personal property then located thereon and therein, free and clear of all liens, 

encumbrances, other defects in title, excepting those that are acceptable to the Tenant at its sole 

discretion.  All of the foregoing transfers shall be accomplished in accordance with the Like Kind 

Exchange Agreement by and between Landlord, Tenant and Mid-So Properties, Inc., a copy of 

which is attached hereto as Exhibit “3” and which Agreement is incorporated herein by reference. 

2. Counterparts/Execution.  This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the 

same instrument.  Facsimile signatures and signed executed pages sent as a PDF attachment to an 

e-mail shall be deemed originals for all purposes. 

3. Definitions.  All capitalized terms used but not defined in this Amendment shall 

have meanings given to such terms in the Leases. 

4. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

- 78 -

Item # 17.



5 
3010848 

5. Brokerage.  Landlord and Tenant each warrant to each other that it has not dealt 

with any broker or agent in connection with the negotiation or execution of this Amendment.  

Landlord and Tenant shall each indemnify each other against all costs, expenses, attorneys’ fees, 

and other liability for commissions or other compensations claimed by any broker or agent 

claiming the same by, through, or under the indemnifying party. 

6. Authority.  The parties to this Amendment warrant and represent to one another 

that they have the power and authority to enter into and perform their respective obligations under 

this Amendment, and the names, titles and capacities herein stated and on behalf of any entities, 

persons, estates or firms represented or purported to be represented by such persons, and that all 

formal requirements necessary or required by any state and/or federal law or private agreement in 

order for the parties to enter into and perform their respective obligations under this Amendment 

have been fully complied with. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have executed this Amendment, which 

shall be effective as of the last date indicated in the signature block below. 

 

TENANT: 

 

THRELDKELD ENTERPRISES, LLC 

 

BY:        

NAME:  Jim Threldkeld 

TITLE:  Manager 

DATE:  Novemberr ____, 2022 

LANDLORD: 

 

CITY OF TUPELO 

 

BY:       

NAME:  Todd Jordan 

TITLE:  Mayor 

DATE:  November ____, 2022 

 

- 79 -

Item # 17.



3020617 

LIKE KIND EXCHANGE AGREEMENT 

This Like Kind Exchange Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of October 

____, 2022, by and between The City of Tupelo, Mississippi (the “City”), Threldkeld 

Enterprises, LLC, a Mississippi limited liability company (“Enterprises”) and Mid-So. 

Properties, Inc., a Mississippi corporation (“MSP”). 

WHEREAS, the City owns fee simple title to the property described on Exhibit “A” 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the “Green Street Property”) subject to a 

Lease Agreement dated as of September 7, 2021, by and between the City, Enterprises and 

Genlyte Thomas, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “2021 Lease”); and 

WHEREAS, Enterprises owns fee simple title to the real property described on Exhibit 

“B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the “Elizabeth Street South Property”) 

and fee simple title to the real property described on Exhibit “C” attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference (the “Commercial Property”) attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference; and 

WHEREAS, MSP owns fee simple title to the real property described on Exhibit “D” 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the “Elizabeth Street North Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the parties wish to set forth their agreement to accomplish a multi-party 

exchange of the aforementioned real property between themselves qualifying as a tax-free like 

kind exchange under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the 

“Code”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. EXCHANGES.  At the Closing (as defined below), (i) Enterprises agrees to 

transfer the Elizabeth Street South Property to the City, (ii) MSP agrees to transfer the Elizabeth 

Street North Property to the City, (iii) the City agrees to transfer the Green Street Property to 

Enterprises, and (iv) Enterprises agrees to transfer the Commercial Property to MSP, all by 

special warranty deed conveying fee simple title to such property free and clear of all liens or 

encumbrances whatsoever, except for (i) public utility easements and rights of way of record, (ii) 

any other restrictions, easements or other rights of record, (iii) zoning and building laws, 

building lines, use and occupancy restrictions, (iv) the lien of personal property, real estate or 

other taxes not yet due and payable, and (v) the 2021 Lease with respect to the Green Street 

Property.  No payment of cash or other consideration shall be transferred between any of the 

parties as part of the foregoing exchanges. 

2. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY ENTERPRISES IN FAVOR 

OF THE CITY.  Enterprises represents and warrants to the City, as a material condition to the 

City's obligations under this Agreement, the following as of the date of this Agreement and as of 

the Closing: 

(a) At the Closing, Enterprises will convey to the City good, marketable, 

insurable and indefeasible fee simple title to the Elizabeth Street South Property, free and clear 

- 80 -

Item # 17.



2 
3020617 

of all conditions, exceptions, reservations, and encumbrances, except for (i) public utility 

easements and rights of way of record, (ii) any other restrictions, easements or other rights of 

record, (iii) zoning and building laws, building lines, use and occupancy restrictions, and (iv) the 

lien of personal property, real estate or other taxes not yet due and payable. 

(b) There are no adverse or other parties in possession of the Elizabeth Street 

South Property or any part thereof.  No party has been granted any license, lease, or other right 

or interest relating to the use or possession of the Elizabeth Street South Property or any part 

thereof, except as expressly permitted pursuant to this Agreement. 

(c) Enterprises has received no notice of and has no other knowledge or 

information of any pending or contemplated condemnation action with respect to the Elizabeth 

Street South Property or any part thereof. 

(d) Enterprises has not received notice of and has no other knowledge of any 

pending or threatened judicial or administrative action with respect to the Elizabeth Street South 

Property or any part thereof. 

(e) No person, firm or corporation has been employed by Enterprises who will 

be entitled to a broker's fee upon the consummation of the transaction contemplated in this 

Agreement. 

3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY MSP IN FAVOR OF THE 

CITY.  MSP represents and warrants to the City, as a material condition to the City's obligations 

under this Agreement, the following as of the date of this Agreement and as of the Closing: 

(a) At the Closing, MSP will convey to the City good, marketable, insurable 

and indefeasible fee simple title to the Elizabeth Street North Property, free and clear of all 

conditions, exceptions, reservations, and encumbrances, except for (i) public utility easements 

and rights of way of record, (ii) any other restrictions, easements or other rights of record, (iii) 

zoning and building laws, building lines, use and occupancy restrictions, and (iv) the lien of 

personal property, real estate or other taxes not yet due and payable. 

(b) There are no adverse or other parties in possession of the Elizabeth Street 

North Property or any part thereof.  No party has been granted any license, lease, or other right 

or interest relating to the use or possession of the Elizabeth Street North Property or any part 

thereof, except as expressly permitted pursuant to this Agreement. 

(c) MSP has received no notice of and has no other knowledge or information 

of any pending or contemplated condemnation action with respect to the Elizabeth Street North 

Property or any part thereof. 

(d) MSP has not received notice of and has no other knowledge of any 

pending or threatened judicial or administrative action with respect to the Elizabeth Street North 

Property or any part thereof. 

- 81 -

Item # 17.



3 
3020617 

(e) No person, firm or corporation has been employed by MSP who will be 

entitled to a broker's fee upon the consummation of the transaction contemplated in this 

Agreement. 

4. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY THE CITY IN FAVOR OF 

ENTERPRISES.  The City represents and warrants to Enterprises, as a material condition to 

Enterprises' obligations under this Agreement, the following as of the date of this Agreement and 

as of the Closing: 

(a) At the Closing, the City will convey to Enterprises good, marketable, 

insurable and indefeasible fee simple title to the Green Street Property, free and clear of all 

conditions, exceptions, reservations, and encumbrances, except for (i) public utility easements 

and rights of way of record, (ii) any other restrictions, easements or other rights of record, (iii) 

zoning and building laws, building lines, use and occupancy restrictions, and (iv) the lien of 

personal property, real estate or other taxes not yet due and payable. 

(b) There are no adverse or other parties in possession of the Green Street 

Property or any part thereof.  Except for the 2021 Lease and all subleases thereunder, no party 

has been granted any license, lease, or other right or interest relating to the use or possession of 

the Green Street Property or any part thereof, except as expressly permitted pursuant to this 

Agreement. 

(c) The City has received no notice of and has no other knowledge or 

information of any pending or contemplated condemnation action with respect to the Green 

Street Property or any part thereof. 

(d) The City has not received notice of and has no other knowledge of any 

pending or threatened judicial or administrative action with respect to the Green Street Property 

or any part thereof. 

(e) No person, firm or corporation has been employed by the City who will be 

entitled to a broker's fee upon the consummation of the transaction contemplated in this 

Agreement. 

5. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY ENTERPRISES IN FAVOR 

OF MSP.  Enterprises represents and warrants to MSP, as a material condition to MSP's 

obligations under this Agreement, the following as of the date of this Agreement and as of the 

Closing: 

(a) At the Closing, Enterprises will convey to MSP good, marketable, 

insurable and indefeasible fee simple title to the Commercial Property, free and clear of all 

conditions, exceptions, reservations, and encumbrances, except for (i) public utility easements 

and rights of way of record, (ii) any other restrictions, easements or other rights of record, (iii) 

zoning and building laws, building lines, use and occupancy restrictions, and (iv) the lien of 

personal property, real estate or other taxes not yet due and payable. 

- 82 -

Item # 17.



4 
3020617 

(b) Enterprises has received no notice of and has no other knowledge or 

information of any pending or contemplated condemnation action with respect to the 

Commercial Property or any part thereof. 

(c) Enterprises has not received notice of and has no other knowledge of any 

pending or threatened judicial or administrative action with respect to the Commercial Property 

or any part thereof. 

(d) No person, firm or corporation has been employed by Enterprises who will 

be entitled to a broker's fee upon the consummation of the transaction contemplated in this 

Agreement. 

6. AD VALOREM TAXES AND EXPENSES.  Enterprises shall be responsible for 

paying all 2022 real property ad valorem taxes applicable to the Elizabeth Street South Property 

applicable to the period prior to Closing.  MSP shall be responsible for paying all 2022 real 

property ad valorem taxes applicable to the Elizabeth Street North Property applicable to the 

period prior to Closing.  Each transferor shall pay for the cost of the preparation of the deed 

which it is executing to transfer the property owned by it.  Each transferee shall be responsible 

for recording the deed and paying the cost of such recording. 

7. LIKE KIND EXCHANGE.  Each party agrees to treat the exchanges set forth 

herein as a like kind exchange within the meaning of Section 1031 of the Code. 

8. CLOSING.  The exchanges provided for herein shall be closed (the “Closing”) 

immediately after Enterprises exercises its option to purchase under paragraph 1 of the 

Amendment to Lease Agreement between the City and Enterprises dated December 7, 2021. 

9. ATTORNEYS’ FEES.  If any party is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to 

be in violation or breach of any of the terms of this Agreement or in breach of any of the 

representations or warranties contained herein, then such breaching party shall pay all costs of 

such action or suit, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is being executed by a duly authorized office 

of MSP, by the duly authorized manager of Enterprises and by _______________ of the City. 

 

MID-SO. PROPERTIES, INC. 

 

By:        

Title:        

THRELDKELD ENTERPRISES, LLC 

 

By:        

Manager 

 

 

 CITY OF TUPELO 

 

By:        

Name:        

Title:        

 

- 83 -

Item # 17.


	Top
	Item # 1.	DDS: LOT MOWING PUBLIC HEARING NOV. 15, 2022
	Public Hearing Lot Mowing Request 11.15.22
	PRELIMINARY LOT MOWING REPORT FOR 11.15.22

	Item # 2.	DDS: AMENDMENT TO CH. 7 CODE OF ORDINANCES NOV. 2022
	Amendments to Ch. 7 Code of Ordinances Request 11.15.22
	Building official and license commission 11-22

	Item # 3.	DDS: AMENDMENT TO CH. 10 CODE OF ORDINANCES NOV. 2022
	Amendments to Ch. 10 Code of Ordinances Request 11.15.22
	Fire Marshal and  appeals 11-22

	Item # 4.	COU:MINUTES NOV 1, 2023 NOV 2023
	Minutes 11-15-2022
	11-1-2022 Regular Revised

	Item # 5.	FIN:BILL PAY NOV 2023
	Bill Pay 11-15-2022

	Item # 6.	FIN: ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL EXPENDITURES NOV 2022
	ad approval 11-15-2022

	Item # 7.	FIN: APPROVE AMENDMENT #1-2023
	request to review and approve amendment #1 FY2023
	AMENDMENT 1

	Item # 8.	FIN: APPROVE THE CLOSING OF MTP PHASE VI BANK ACCOUNT
	request to close MTP phase VI bank account
	CLOSE ACCOUNT ORDER MTP Phase VI

	Item # 9.	FIN: APPROVE THE CLOSING OF G.O. BOND FUND BANK ACCOUNT
	request to close G.O. Bond Fund bank account
	CLOSE ACCOUNT G.O. Bond Fund

	Item # 10.	ADM:ENGINEER ARC COOPER TIRE PROJECT NOV 2022
	Memo to Council_ ARC Cooper Tire_Approve Engineering Recommendation_15 Nov 2022

	Item # 11.	DDS: LOT MOWING REQUEST NOV. 15, 2022
	Lot Mowing Request 11.15.22
	PRELIMINARY LOT MOWING REPORT FOR 11.15.22

	Item # 12.	DDS: BELLEDEER NEIGHBORHOOD OVERLAY ORDINANCE UPDATE NOV. 2022
	Belledeer Overlay Update Request 11.15.22

	Item # 13.	DDS: REDISTRICTING RESOLUTION NOV. 2022
	Redistricting Resolution Request 11.15.22
	CityofTupelo_RedistrictingResolution2022

	Item # 14.	DDS: THREE RIVERS REDISTRICTING CONTRACT NOV. 2022
	Three Rivers Contract Approval Request 11.15.22
	TRPDD RD Services Contract

	Item # 15.	PR: TPRD PARK ADVISORY MINUTES AUGUST 9 2022 NOV 2022
	Advisory Board Minutes for August 2022
	Minutes for August 9, 2022

	Item # 16.	PR: 2022 SKATE PARK CONTRACT
	2022 SKATE PARK contract approval
	Scan Nov 09, 2022 (3)

	Item # 17.	ADM:AMEND DAYBRITE/SIGNIFY/THRELKELD BUILDING LEASE NOV 2023
	Daybrite Amendment Agenda Request
	Resolution with City of Tupelo - Threldkeld Enterprises (002)
	Like Kind Exchange Agreement - Threldkeld Enterprises

	Bottom

